BRUMAGE STONE HOUSE
AL=VI=-B=042
0ld Legislative Road

The Brumage Stone House, built by John
Van Buskirk in 1790, is one of the few rural
stone dwellings constructed in Allegany
County prior to 1840, Log cabins were much
more widespread during that time period. The
house is located 1.3 miles north of Lonaconing
along the 0ld Coney Road, has walls 18 inches
thick and includes 7 rooms. During the year
of 1843, Rev. Father John N. Neuman held
Catholic Masses in the house. The exterior
stone walls are currently very sound, and a
slow but complete interior remodeling process
is being undertaken by the present owner.
The Brumage Stone House stands as a cultural
reminder of the way of life found in Allegany
County during the first settlement of its west=-

ern portion.
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CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The old stone house in the George's Creek area north of Lonaconing
in Allegany County, Maryland, is a two and a half story, three bay
structure built of the native fieldstone. Constructed into a slope and
facing south, it is situated on the south edge of the old Frostburg
Road, south of State Route 113.

The house is built of grandular local stone laid in relatively
even courses. The masonry appears to be equal in quality at all elevations.
All windows are topped with arches of angle cut stones with prominent
wedge shaped central rocks suggesting keystones. Although the bottom
surfaces of the window arches are flat, their tops follow the form of a
slight segmental arch. At the west corner of the north facade in a
smooth stone set about four to five feet above ground level is inscribed,
A.D. 1790. In the same stone, cut more crudely and presumably at a later
time are the initials DMS. Other inscriptions cut into stones of the
north wall are the names D.H. Cutter, Annie, Emma and the date June 24,
1922.

Since the house is built into a slope, two full stories plus an
upper half story are exposed at the south elevation. At the north
wall, however, only one and a half stories extend above ground. An
unusual feature of the house is that the uppermost half story has no
openings in the north or south walls and is lit only by small windows in
the gables.

The south elevation has windows and doors which are nearly aligned
with each other from story to story. Windows are quite small with
massive framing. The actual window and door frames are cased with boards
with a beaded edge. They are trimmed with ovolo molding and are attached
to the framing members with wrought nails. Some early paint remains on
these casings. Apparently, then, the window frames were cased originally,
an unusual treatment. No original sashes remain in any of the windows.

Doors are located in the center bay of the south elevation at the
ground and main story levels. They are framed and trimmed similarly
to the windows but it appears that the ground story entrance has had
its casing replaced. No evidence remains of a transom above either door.

Much of the south elevation was at one time whitewashed. Small
nailing blocks set in the wall indicate that a two story porch was
present, its roof line being just above the main level openings. An
early 20th century photograph showing part of the house reveals a porch
with Victorian period posts and a flight of steps near the west end of the
south wall. Possibly this late 19th century style porch followed the form
of the original structure. Obviously, as indicated by the upper level
door, some sort of porch or stair arrangement was intended at the time
the house was built.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Dated 1790, this stone house certainly reflects in its construction
late 18th century stylistic influences and workmanship. It also shows
continental ethnic building traditions in the use of the basic three room
plan. 1In 1790, the area of Maryland west of Cumberland was still largely
frontier and this house, one of few stone dwellings in the area shows
evidence of considerable refinement relative to its then remote location.
The house displays some unusual features including masonry executed in
equal quality at all elevation. More often particularly fine masonry
was evident at the front elevation while the side and rear walls were
much less precisely finished. This uniformity of masonry extends to the
window heads which have arches with keystones at all openings. The method
of window framing with applied casing is also unusual. It also seeams
unusual that the builder if he was planning to finish the upper half story
did not include any more or larger openings than he did. The house presents
a number of questions to the historian. First, why, if the upper level was
intended for living area were the tie beams placed in the manner they were,
putting obstructions in the room? Secondly, why was the main story ceiling
not finished until the late 19th or early 20th century. Thirdly, what
happened that resulted in the rebuilding of the stair case, the replacement
of the interior partitions and the removal of the paneling which presumably
sheathed the fireplace wall of the large room at the main level?

Although future work on the house may yield answers to some of these
questions, the intentions of the original builder amy remain unknown.

This house nevertheless is a fine example of dated 18th century stone
construction of which examples are few in Allegany and Garrett Counties.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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1790 Stone House
Lonaconing

The east and west end walls each have only three openings, two
small windows at the upper level and one main story level window
toward the north side of each wall. The main story window in the
west end wall is quite short and is located within a stair well at the
interior. Evidence of white wash remains on areas of these walls.

The north walls which faces the old Frostburg Road and upon which
the date stone appears, has openings only at the main story level,
two windows with a door between them. The westernmost window is set much
closer to the entrance than the other window. An unusual feature of the
doorway is that an area of stone infill separates its lintel from the
stone arch above it causing the door lintel to be at a lower level than
the window heads on either side of it. Evidence in the masonry indicates
that a small one bay porch once sheltered the entrance.

The house has received recently a modern roof of asphalt shingles
with the roof structure extending beyond the end walls. The ends of the
rafters finished with curved feet are exposed at the eaves and apparently
were so originally. The ends of the plates are also exposed at the gable
walls. Stone chimneys are located inside the end walls and have been
rebuilt at the tops with caps consisting of a raised flat tablet over the
opening.

Exterior paints showed three layers on most wood surfaces. The
most recent was a deep bluish green color. Beneath it was a dark
brownish red under which was seen some remnants of a white paint which
may have been a primer coat.

At the ground story the interior of the house is divided into two
rooms by a frame partition which shows evidence of having been rebuilt.
The framing consists of sawn 2" x 4" studs with machine made wooden lath
attached. A large exposed summer beam hewn on four sides, extends
completely across the house, east to west. In the west room evidence on
the summer beam suggests that at one time a partition along he beam
divided this large room in two. Prominent in the west wall is a large
service fireplace which has been filled with stone. The original jambs
show evidence of whitewash. A cupboard is located in the southwest corner
of the room while an enclosed winding stair is located in the northwest
corner. The stair construction includes sawn lath and circular sawn
boards, and apparently was at least particurally rebuilt. Interior finishes
in the room date from the ca. 1900 period but beneath layers of wall paper
and old dry wall are vertical boards which cover the north foundation wall
and may have been the original wall surface of the room.

The east room at the ground level remains in more original condition.
It is smaller than the west room having only one opening to the exterior,
a window in the south wall. The main architectural feature in this room
is the triangular stone chimney pier supporting fireplaces in the upper
levels. The summer beam extends into this pier and mortised into it are
two diagonal brace beams. Part of the original vertical board sheathing
is present over the stone foundation walls. The entire surface of this
room has been whitewashed.
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1790 Stone House
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The main story of the house follows a Germanic three room plan.
Opposing front and rear entrances open into the principal room which is
the traditional European plan served as kitchen, dining and living area.
Almost half of the interior floor space is within this major room. The
rest of the area is divided into two smaller rooms approximately equal in
size, each with a diagonally placed corner fireplace. Although all of the
interior partitions are replacements, dating from the late 19th or early
20th century, they appear to follow the original room arrangement.

In the westernmost room is a large fireplace with a segmentally
arched opening of angle cut stones with a prominent keystone. The entire
chimney breast is exposed stone with numerous layers of whitewash coating
it. In the southwest corner of the room is a cupboard with pairs of doors
with highly raised fielded panels. Part of the cornice or crown molding
extends across the top of the chimney wall. A casing board at the head
of the cupboards has been removed. Apparently the entire chimney breast
was paneled originally as was the general style in the 18th century, or
at least there was an intent on the part of the builder to install full
panel ing.

The two east rooms of the main floor each have a small diagonal
fireplace with a segmentally arched opening. Each fireplace is framed with
a simple beaded architrave with ovolo molding. In the southeast room,

a mantel shelf supported with brackets has been added. The fireplace
opening has been partly enclosed and a cast iron grate installed.

Although much of the original chair rail has been removed, sections
of it remain beneath the windows and in the northeast room. The top part
of the chair rail is finished with a half round bead typical of the 18th
century. Window and door architraves are trimmed with ovolo molding with
the same molding trimming the inner openings of the windows as well.
Aside from the plastered ceilings installed during the late 19th or early
20th century, there is no evidence visible at present that the joists
and ceiling ever received plaster. The joists were expertly hewn but
were not beaded, chamfered or otherwise finished.

The stairway located in the northwest corner of the west room, was
enclosed and as indicated by its framing shows evidence of having been
rebuilt as was indicated in the discussion of the ground story. The stair
leads to the upper half story, an attic.

The upper level of the house was nto finished until approximately
100 years after the house was built in 1790. The builder, however, clearly
intended this part of the house to be living area because he included two
small fireplaces, one at each end of the building. In the triangular
chimney at the east end is a fireplace with an arched top of the same
construction already described. The other fireplace, also arched is in the
west end wall chimney. The stone chimneys never had any surface finish.
Extending between the walls and mortised into the plates were three tie
beams, one at each end wall and one at the center of the house. These
beams were only four to five feet above the floor level and the center
member, apparently because it was such an obstruction in the room, was
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Brumage Stone House was constructed in 1790 approximately
1.3 miles north of Lonaconing along the 0ld Legislative Road (for-
merly the Old Coney Road.) It is built upon an approximate 20 degree
slope which grades from north to south and reveals the door and two
windows in the basement on the south side. Walls, 18inches thick,
compose this two story, rectangular, three bay wide stone house.
There are a total of 7 rooms in the house, including the two found
in the basement area. The stone bond used to construct this dwelling
falls into the uncoursed rubble category. Lights in the windows have
been removed, but in all probability were six over six in the double
hung group. Five single sash windows are also present in the struc-
ture. The main entrance faces north and there are two entrances, one
over top of the other, located on the south side. There was obviously
a wooden landing serving the upper south entrance at one time. The
present replaced doors have horizontal panels with two lights. Rafter
ends are exposed under the plain, gabled roof, which has been recovered
with asphalt shingling. Vertical stone work forms jackarches over all
doors and windows. The house features two original stone chimneys
located on the flush end of both the east and west sides. They were
corbeled when built, but have been recapped by the present owner. The
inside face of the chimney serving the east side juts inward at a 45°
angle and has two openings for the first floor while only one on the
second. A slow but complete interior remodeling process is currently
being attempted by the present owner.

The Brumage Stone House retains most of its original fabric; ex-

terior walls there are extremely sturdy, but the interior is in deteri-
orated condition.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Brumage Stone House stands out as one of the few early two
story stone dwellings built in rural Allegany County. The predominant
form of early architecture here was the traditional two story log
cabin. John VanBuskirk was one of the few settlers to move in to the
Lonaconing area before 1800, (the house stands 1.3 miles north of Lona-
coning) and he built this stone house in 1790. A corner stone containing
the date of completion is still legible on the lower northwest corner

of the house.

Religion also had a significant place in the history of the Bru-
mage Stone House. It served as a Catholic Chapel for Mass said by a
visiting Priest. Rev. Father John Nepomucene Neuman held the Masses
during the year of 1843, and people from Barton were reported to have
walked as much as five miles to attend.

1 '"Heritage Press" Volume I, No. 9, July, 1972, p.3

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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AL-VI-B-042
1790 Stone House
Lonaconing

cut when the room was finished in Ca. 1900 period. The two end beams

remain in place.
plates together.
finished.

The purpose of these beams was apparently to hold the two
Perhaps they had shifted before the house was completely
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Br=dedek Stone House

Allegany County Deed; Liber 428, Folio 595
grantee: Wirginia Brumage

grantor: George R. Hughes, Assignee of Mortgage
March 27, 1969

Consideration: $2,200.00

Public Sale, February 8, 1969 - Mortgage Foreclosure - Mortgage of Henry
Cutter - Liber 286/339

Allegany County Deed; Liber 248, Folio 202
grantee: Henry J. Cutter, et. ux.

grantor: The George's Creek Coal & Land Comvany
February 7, 1953

Jonsideration: $1,000. 0

The house 1s located on a portion of the "Commonwealth tract".

Allegany County Deed; Liber 246, Folio 366
grantee: The George's Creek Coal & Land Company
grantor: The George's Creek Coal Company, Inc.
December 1, 1952

One Company completely sold out to the other.

Allegany County Deed; Liber 106, Folio 392
grantee: The George's Creek Coal Company
grantor: Robert L. Somerville, et. al.
July 6, 1910

Allegany County Deed: Liber 106, Folio 377
grantee: Robert L. Somerville, et. al.

grantor: George's Creek Coal & Iron Company
July 6, 1910

Allegany County Deed; Liber AA, Folio 449
grantee: The George's Creek Coal & Iron Company
grantor: Samuel Van Buskirk

May 7, 1849

Consideration: $2,500.00

Allegany County Deed; Liber H, Folio 408
grantee: Samuel Van Buskirk

grantor: John Van Buskirk

November 16, 1815

John died intestate



Government Patent
grantee: John Van Buskirk
grantor: Govermment Patent
October 18, 1796
Consideration: ?

Military Lot #3720 was patented to John Van Buskirk.
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